January 29, 2003 (AR 18J)

S even Dunn

Wsconsi n Departnent of Natural Resources
101 South Vebster Sreet

P.Q Box 7921

Madi son, Wsconsi n 53707- 7921

Dear M. Dunn:

This letter isinregards to your Qctober 3, 2002, letter requesting
assistance for a permt determnation for PH Qatfelter Gonpany. In your
letter, you state that PH Qatfelter proposes to repl ace approxi natel y 1060
steamtubes in one of its boilers wth new steamtubes. The question you

rai sed is whether the proposed project qualifies for the "routine nai ntenance,
repair and repl acenent” P3D exenption under the definition of "na or

nodi fication" as approved into the Wsconsin Sate Inplenentation PFan in

Nat ural Resources (NR chapter 405.02(21).

As you are aware, it is Wsconsin' s responsibility, as the permtting
authority, to determne whether PH Qatfelter’s project is routine

nai ntenance, repair or replacenent. However, based on the infornati on nade
avai labl e to us and as expl ai ned bel ow the Lhited Sates Environnent al
Protection Agency’s (USEPA) opinion is that the planned project should not be
considered routine nai ntenance, repair or replacenent under Wsconsin' s

regul ati ons and USEPA gui di ng pol i ci es.

Wien assessi ng whet her changes can be considered routine under the Qean A r
Act’s PDregul ations, we considered the nature, extent, purpose, frequency,
cost,_ as well_ as other relevant. factors. An exanple of this is provided in a

at http://vww epa. gov/ttn/nsr/gen/letterf3. pdf.

Qur assessnent of the proposed project is provided for your consideration as
fol | ons:

Nature and extent- The project wll include replacing 1060 steamtubes in
boiler nunber 1. This replacenent differs fromthe nore typi cal nai nt enance
activities that are perforned annually in that it involves a conpl ete

repl acenent of the tubes in a naj or conponent of the boiler, as opposed to
repl acenent of just a fewworn or danaged tubes on an as- needed basi s.
Additionally, the project is expected to require 5 weeks to conpl et e.




Repl acenent done on an as-needed basi s has been stated to take no nore than a
day or two. The amount of tine required for the project is significant
conpared to previ ous tube repl acenent project.

Purpose- It appears that the project may al so serve to extend the useful life
of the boiler. The boiler was built in 1968, a 34 year old boiler, and

al though the VINR did not provide data on the average age of other simlar
boil ers, the proposed project can be viewed as a significant repair of a naj or
boi | er conponent .

Frequency- As your letter indicates, this would be the first tine inthe 35
year |ife of the boiler where all the tubes woul d be repl aced. Mreover, the
i nfrequency of such replacenent at this boiler supports our understandi ng that
conpl ete boil er tube repl acenents are not perforned on a frequent basis.

Cost- According to your letter, this project is expected to cost $450,000. In
a followup discussion wth the VDINR it was stated that a typical tube repair
cost woul d be approxi nately $50,000. The project cost is significantly hi gher
than the expected nmai nt enance general repl acenent costs.

PH Qatfelter naintains that this project, when conplete, wll have no net
effect on emssions or on the way the boiler is utilized in the existing
operating node, and as such, should not be subject to PDreview Your letter
does not provide sufficient infornation to nake a determnation of whet her
this project's change in emssions is greater than the PSD signifi cance
emssions threshold. However, as you are aware, a nodification that results
inasignificant emssions increase conparing the unit’s past actual toits
future potential emssions, requires the nodification to go through PSD
review The exception to this is the provision conmonly known as the

“WHPQO test”, where past actual emssion are conpared to projected future
emssions. It is our opinion, the unit in questionis not an electric utility
steamgenerating unit, and woul d therefore not be eligible for the VPO test.

In conclusion, wth respect to this project's eligibility for an exenption
fromPSD pursuant to NR 405.02(21), we believe that this project does not
represent routine nai ntenance, repair or replacenent activities.

If you have any further questions, please feel free to contact ne, or contact
onstantine B athras at (312) 886-0671.

S ncerely yours,

Fobert B. MIler, Chief
Permits and Gants Section



